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FW: Funeral Attendance
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Subject: FW: Funeral Attendance
Date: Wed, 31 Jan 2001 14:59:23 -0800

From:
To:

Forward Header

Subject: FW: Funeral Attendance

Author: "Trapp; Randa" |GGG 2t -Internet2

Date: /33 /2001 1:33 PM

Hi Judge,

Howard Wayne is going to close down the Assembly early in honor of Judge
Gilliam. I don't know when, but from Sherry's note it appears Rebecca is

invited to attend if she'd like. .I don't want to'bether her right now. Do
you think this is something shefs.clike to do? They will send her ithe
minutes either way. Thanks.

~~~~~ Original Message-—-————

From: Thompson, Sherry

Sent: Wednesday, January 31, 2001 11:52 AM
To: 'Trapp, Randa'

Subject: RE: Funeral Attendance

I just got a call from Assemblyman Howard Wayne's office. They are preparing
a memorial resolution for the funeral and hope to have it ready for Tuesday.
I will incorporate it into my 2 minutes. The Assemblyman also plans to
adjourn an assembly session early in Judge Gilliam's honor and say a few
words about the judge. They will send the minutes to Rebecca if she'd like
to have them. Or maybe even be present.

X mae Original Messdge—————
From: Trapp, Randa
> Sent: Wednesday, January 31,

2001 11:15 AM

‘hj'!; Frederick K. Tavior:

Funeral Attendance

uld be a wonderful tribute to the memory of Judge Gilliam if all of
to attend the funeral. The services are Tuesday, February 6 at 1
Bayview Baptist Church. Please pass the note on to every African

of the past presidents give me a call - (619) 699-5049, 1
‘ou about a special tribute.

1/31/01 7:02 PM






FW: Funeral Attendance

Funeral
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> Date: Monday, January 29 2001 2:14 PM
> Subject: RE: Funeral

> I also vote that we send flowers.

-
>>> "shelton, Roderick" | I 0:/25/01 01:18PM >>>
> I vote that we =2 wers.
>
P s
> Shelton, Roderick;

> > I made an executive decision and assumed that we would send flowers.
>xkFor

b we have a Motion and a Second and vote. (board members
- >

> > Next, Eddie Price 1s posting the press release on the website and would
> > like personal fessional pictures of Judge Gilliam to post as a

ofessi
et me know 1if you have any.

1/31/01 7:02 PM





FW: Funeral Attendance

3of5

Finally, I was asked if we would like to have a memorial/celebration in
Judge Gilliam's honor on Friday 2/2 at First Fridays at Jazzy's. Please
let me know if you think this would be appropriate and if you would be

likely to attend.

%

Hi Judge,

Howard Wayne is going to close down the Assembly early in honor of Judge Gilliam. 1 don't know when, but from Sherry's note
it appears Rebecca is invited to attend if she'd like. I don't want to bother her right now. Do you think this is something she's like
to do? They will send her the minutes either way. Thanks.

From: ﬁmmpson Sherry
Sent: Wednesday, January 31, 2001 11:52 AM

To: '"Trapp. Randa' /
Subject: RE: Funeral Attendance /

[ just got a call from Assemblyman Howard Wayne's office. They are preparing
a memorial resolution for the funeral and hope to have it ready for Tuesday.

[ will incorporate it into my 2 minutes. The Assemblyman also plans to
adjourn an assembly session early in Judge Gilliam's honor and say a few
words about the judge. They will send the minutes to Rebecca if she'd like

to have them. Or maybe even be present.

> Sent: \Kgdn\.\dd\ January 31, 2001 11:15 AM
>To: 'hy"; Frederick K. - Faylor:

>Cc:

- \ulmu Funeral Attendance
>

> It would be a wonderful tribute to the memory of Judge Gilliam if all of

> us were to attend the funeral. The services are Tuesday, February 6 at 1

> p.m. at Bayview Baptist Church. Please pass the note on to every African
> American attorney in town and take responsibility for getting at least one
> other lawyer there. Let us make a good showing.

>

> Also, would all of the past presidents give me a call - (619) 699-5049. I
> need to talk to you about a special tribute.

> Thanks everyone.

1/31/01 7:02 PM






FW: Funeral Attendance

> emee Original Message-----
> From: hj
> Sent: Friday, January 19, 2001 10:17 PM
> To: Frederick K. Taylor;

> Subject: Re: Funeral

>

Flowers
----- Original Message-----

From: Frederick K Taylor_

['o:
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> Date: Monday, January 29, 2001 2:14 PM
> Subject: RE: Funeral

>

\

[ also vote that we send flowers.

>> "Shelton, Roderick" (| GGG 01/29/01 01:18PM >>>

[ vote that we send flowers.

>

\%
\A

Vi

> eee- Original Message-----
> From: Thompson, Sherry

> Sent: Monday, January 29, 2001 11:49 AM
> To: Uvieghara, Chris (Child Support);

\

Vo NN VY

YaN
4

> Ce: 'MsLei@aol.com'; 'pburnham(@sempra.com’;

Vv

> Maria;
> Willis. Browder:

>

N NIV

. Shelton, Roderick;

> Subject: Funeral
>

MY

> > ] made an executive decision and assumed that we would send flowers.
> For

he record can we have a Motion and a Second and vote. (board members

4o0f5 1/31/01 7:02 PM






FW: Funeral Attendance

> > only, please).

> >

> > Next, Eddie Price is posting the press release on the website and would
> > like personal or professional pictures of Judge Gilliam to post as a

> > memorial. Please let me know if you have any.

> >

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

>>

>> .8t

>

>

173101 7:02 PM
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Pastor Timothy J. Winters, D.Min. 00 wnd Buyond

March 20, 2001

Rebecca Prater Gilliam
2121 Paradise Street
San Diego, CA 92114-1517

Dear Mrs. Gilliam:

Grace be unto you and peace from God our Father, and the Lord Jesus Christ.

Thank you for your letter dated February 28, 2001. I truly considered it a privilege to
host the Honorable Earl B. Gilliam’s Home Going Service. It was a blessing to have
known your husband. He often involved himself in worthwhile civic projects. The

community is richer for his having lived.

I encourage you to keep on, not in your own strength, but in the power of God’s might.

Tifmothy J. Winters, D.Min.

TIW:jm

Reaching the Lost and Teaching the Saved to Serve
6134 Benson Ave. San Diego, CA 92114 Office:(619) 262-8384 Fax:(61 9) 262-9394 email:info@bayviewbc.org







The Federal Bar Association - San Diego Chapter
Welcomes you to

A Dinner Honoring the
Senior Judges
of the Southern District of California

Wednesday
January 31, 2001

5:30 p.m. - Reception
6:30 p.m. - Dinner/Program

; U.S. Grant Hotel
| 326 Broadway
| San Diego, California






Tonight We Honor:

Honorable Howard B. Turrentine
Appointed 1970; Chief Judge from 1982-1984
Senior Status Commenced: 1984

Honorable Gordon Thompson, Jr.
Appointed 1970; Chief Judge from 1984-1991
Senior Status Commenced: 1994

Honorable William B. Enright
Appointed 1972; Senior Status Commenced: 1990
Retired : 2001

Honorable Rudi M. Brewster
Appointed 1984; Senior Status Commenced: 1998

Honorable John S. Rhoades
Appointed 1985; Senior Status Commenced: 1995

Tonight We Remember:

Honorable Edward J. Schwartz (1912-2000)
U.S. District Judge: 1968-2000

Honorable Leland C. Nielsen (1919-1999)
U.S. District Judge: 1971-1999

Honorable Earl B. Gilliam (1931-2001)
U.S. District Judge: 1980 - 2001






Welcoming Remarks

History of the Southern

District of California

Remarks from the Chief Judge

Remarks from the Mayor

of San Diego

Tribute to the

Senior Judges

In Memoriam - Earl B. Gilliam

Remarks on behalf of the

the Senior Judges

.........

......

............. Maria Acker

President, FBA

....... Laura Birkmeyer, FBA

Introducing Video
Presentation & Speakers

........... Honorable

Marilyn L. Huff

............ Honorable

Richard Murphy

..................................... Video Presentation

.......... Video Presentation

............ Honorable

William B. Enright






The San Diego Chapter of the Federal Bar Association

The Federal Bar Association, as the national representative and voice of
the federal legal practitioner, advances the science of jurisprudence and
promotes the welfare, interests, education and professional development
of all attorneys involved in federal law. The San Diego Chapter is
pleased to host this evening's program which highlights the excellence of
our local federal bench and the value and importance of collegiality in

our legal community.

Maria R. Acker, President

Gray, Cary, Ware & Freidenrich
401 B Street, Suite 1700

San Diego, CA 92101
Telephone: (619) 699-4712

Helen S. Irza, Second Vice President
Morrison & Foerster

12636 High Bluff Dr., Ste. 300

San Diego, CA 92130

Telephone: (858) 720-5156

Meryl C. Maneker, Secretary
Wilson, Petty, Kosmo & Turner
550 West C Street, Suite 1050
San Diego, CA 92101
Telephone: (619) 236-9600

Robert Gerber, Events Chair
Sheppard, Mullin, Richter,

& Hampton

501 W. Broadway, 19th Floor
San Diego, CA 92101
Telephone: (619) 338-6500

John D. Kirby, First Vice President
Assistant U.S. Attorney

880 Front Street, Room 6293

San Diego, CA 92101

Telephone: (619) 557-6294

Gino D. Serpe, Treasurer
Attorney at Law

1666 Garnet Avenue, PMB 719
San Diego, CA 92109
Telephone: (858) 539-0500

Pamela Parker, Membership Chair
Milberg, Weiss, Bershad, Hynes &
& Lerach, LLP

600 W. Broadway, Ste. 1800

San Diego, CA 92101

Telephone: (619) 231-1058

David Steinman, Newsletter Editor
Gray, Cary, Ware & Freidenrich
401 B Street, Suite 1700

San Diego, CA 92101

Telephone: (619) 699-2655

Laura J. Birkmeyer
Immediate Past President
Assistant U.S. Attorney

880 Front Street, Room 6293
San Diego, CA 92101
Telephone: (619) 557-5481







August 17, 1931 - January 28, 2001

Tuesday, February 6, 2001
" 1:00 PM.
Bayview Baptist Church
Timothy Winters, D.Min., Pastor
6126 Benson Avenue, San Diego, California

Officiating Ministers

Reverend George Walker Smith, Pastor Emeritus
Christ United Presbyterian Church

Reverend James H. Hargett, Pastor Emeritus

Christian Fellowship Congregational Church, United Church of Christ






Obituary

arl B. Gilliam was born on August 17, 1931 in Clovis, New Mexico to James

Earl and Lula Mae Gooden Gilliam. The family moved first to Oklahoma

City, and then when Earl was age 10, moved to San Diego. Earl attended
Logan and Stockton elementary schools, Memorial Jr. High, and San Diego High
School. In 1949 he entered San Diego State College, where he majored in business.
Upon graduation from San Diego State he was accepted into Hastings College of Law
in San Francisco, where he graduated in 1957.

In 1947 the Gilliam family opened the Louisiana Seafood Market on Imperial Avenue.
Earl could be found behind the fish counter after school and weekends thereafter until
he left for law school. In fact, he often joked that it was his desire to find a way out of
the fish market that motivated him to begin a career in the law.

Earl practiced law, as a deputy district attorney and as a general practitioner, for five
years until 1963 when, at age 32, he was appointed to the Municipal Court by Governor Edmond G. Brown,
becoming the first African American to sit on the San Diego bench. He was elected Presiding Judge in 1971. In
1975, Governor Jerry Brown elevated Earl to the San Diego Superior Court bench. In 1980, Earl was appointed by
President Jimmy Carter to the United States District Court for the Southern District of California, a position he
held proudly until his death.

Earl had a deep sense of social responsibility and a commitment to public service. He became an adjunct professor
at Western State University School of Law when it opened in 1969 and continued to teach for the next 24 years. In
1995 the school’s moot courtroom was formally dedicated in his honor.

Judge Gilliam generously gave time and effort to this community in countless ways. He served on the boards of
numerous civic, professional and private organizations, including his favorite senior housing charity, San Diego
Kind Corporation, as well as the Board of Overseers of University of California San Diego, Thomas Jefferson
School of Law, Burn Institute, Urban League, Boys Club, YMCA, Model Cities, and many others. The community,
in turn, has repeatedly acknowledged his contributions with awards too numerous to list in detail. In 1982, San
Diego’s African American lawyers organization honored him by changing its name to the Earl B. Gilliam Bar
Association.

Earl met his wife, Rebecca Prater, in 1978, and she was his date for the 1978 San Diego County Bar Dinner. They
remained the best of personal and professional friends for the rest of their careers, and ultimately married in 1993.
Tragically, two weeks after their wedding Earl had heart surgery which left him paralyzed and on dialysis for the
remainder of his life. The long ordeal, however, never damped his spirit.

Earl is also survived by his beloved son, Derrick James Gilliam of San Francisco, born of Earl’s first marriage to
Barbara Crawford. Their oldest son, Earl Kenneth Gilliam, died of cancer in 1999. Additional survivors are Earl
Kenneth’s son Tooran Gilliam, and Rebecca’s daughter and granddaughter Claudia and Nandina Menifee, all of
San Diego; nephew Frank L. Swain, Jr. of Chicago; cousins Mary Francis Jones and Art Gilliam of Memphis,
Blanche Willis and Sammie Caldwell of Waco, Texas, Gloria Shepard of St. Albans, New York, Doyle Walker of
Desoto, Texas; and a host of other cousins, relatives and friends throughout the country.

The family requests that donations be made to the Earl B. Gilliam Bar Association Scholarship Fund, PO Box
125022, San Diego, CA 92112, or to the William J. Oakes Boys and Girls Club of San Diego at 2930 Marcy Avenue,
San Diego, CA 92113.






MY FAMILY MEMORIES

Baby Earl (Junior) Junior, II\D/IOL;n, Lula Ig/iaré;
| James
All dressed up! ad, |

Appointment to Municipal Court

Grandson, Tooran, late son Earl Kenny, Dad (Earl) ﬂﬁd
in San Diego - 1963 youngest son, Derrick






... MORE MEMORIES

Here comes Santa

Tending to his favorite pastime.
A gardener for all seasons

Nandina reads to “Baby Grandpa”





REFLECTIONS OF FRIENDS AND COLLEAGUES

Do you remember?

The Judge and then Governor Jerry Brown

Friends, Len Perry, Judge Earl
and Hartwell Ragsdale






... FRIENDS AND COLLEAGUES

Chief Judge Marilyn Huff and Earl

Earl and Judge John Rhodes in Alaska

i
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Here come the Honorable Federal Court Judges, Earl & Nap Jones,
Kappa and Boulé Brothers for Life!





MY COLLEAGUES
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United States District Court for the Southern District of California, year 2000
Top L to R: Johr I‘i.'nu’;\ William Enright, Tom Whe Jeff Miller, Judy Keep Barry Moskowitz, James Lorenz
Bottom L to R 1"%:(3-\”::;1.";': Gordon Thompson :".1'.' B. Gilliam, Marilyn Huff, Howard Turrentine.
Napoleon Jones, Jr., Rudy Brewster :






ORDER OF SERVICE
ST @IE Ty [ R T —— i i
Bt San Diego Police Department
Processional
T — " AMAZING GIACE” w.ovvvrrrissievviissiinisssinsssinss Soloist - Sharron Morgan
Charles Ray, Organist
Cronti
TEBINES .y nstemvesassmssrssiesssssisssssssvsss QP seffiosss seagiTomsvoss s mbacssspsssdsnsssscs Reverend George Walker Smith, Pastor Emeritus
Christ United Presbyterian Church
Pr
BYEE (otvrcitcinsinsysmmsnensossossonsnpgution s cosscssivssssssovsgusstosnsnsg i asnsscusrsrmessas s GG S v Hs R T e afane Timothy Winters, D.Min., Pastor
Bayview Baptist Church
Pas
g irom the Old TesBigonis.. oot s ittt b s et Reverend James H. Hargett, Pastor Emeritus
Christian Fellowship Congregational Church, United Church of Christ
Shared Pilgri
llgrlmage .................................................................................................... Reverend James H. Hargett, Pastor Emeritus
Christian Fellowship Congregational Church, United Church of Christ
Song .........
S . SR e— “The Lords Prayer” .......oveevicvssinsisissinsses Soloist - Shirley Logan
Song .........
Spaeertt. RMGNSES Y SO “Total PrAISe” .....ovivvssseessseusssiasisrans Choir - Bayview Baptist Church

iilcir: reading of the Obituary
OWledement of Eodolonesl ...k T oo ciisssssssesiosss iR I e emessossffonss TR Juande Ragsdale-Blevins

Resolutions - (please limit to two minutes each)

“Shadow of YOUr SMle” .........cconeriensvissrieisessssens Soloist - Jesse Davis
Charles Ray, Pianist

Marilyn Huff - Chief Judge, United States District Court
Charles Rucker - friend of Earl since childhood
Derrick James Gilliam - son of Earl

Congregati
BRRONal FIVEn ..o snrsscnmnsions S “ How Great THOUGN AT ...ovvvevvvvsisiissssssssssisssssssnansssssinnss Page 25

Comments
.......................................................................................................... Reverend George Walker Smith, Pastor Emeritus
Christ United Presbyterian Church

Benediction :
Reverend James H. Hargett, Pastor Emeritus

Christian Fellowship Congregational Church, United Church of Christ

Recessiona] .
................................................................................................................................................ Soloist - Sharron Morgan
Charles Ray, Pianist





HONORARY PALLBEARERS

Robert Kipper
Hartwell W. Ragsdale
Len Perry, Esq.

Judge Napoleon Jones
Jesse Davis
Charles Rucker
Judge Joe Littlejohn
Councilman George Stevens
Dale Epps
Don Wrighton, Esq.

ACTIVE PALLBEARERS

Derrick James Gilliam
Clark Rucker
Hans Erik Nansen
Anthony Ear] Galyean
Brock Prater
Charles Powell

INTERNMENT
Mount Hope Cemetery

REPASS

Christ United Presbyterian Church
30th Street at Fir
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FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

HONORABLE EARL B. GILLIAM

'i,'he United States District Court for the Southern District of California is deeply saddened
by the loss of one of its most beloved jurists, the Honorable Earl B. Gilliam. He passed away on
January 28, 2001 after a long illness.

Judge Gilliam was appointed to the federal bench by President Jimmy Carter on August
20. 1980, and took senior status on April 12, 1993. Prior to joining the federal bench, Judge
Gilliam served as a municipal court judge in San Diego from 1963 to 1975, and as a superior
court judge from 1975 to 1980. Judge Gilliam was the first African American in San Diego to be
appointed as a judge to the municipal court, the superior court, and the district court.

Judge Gilliam was born on August 17, 1931, in Clovis, New Mexico and spent his early
years in Oklahoma City. He moved to San Diego with his family in the ﬁfth grade and attended
Logan and Stockion Elementary Schools. Memorial Junior High and San Diego High School. His
picture adorns the high school hallway in tribute to him. He graduated from San Diego State
Umiversity in 1953 as a business major and received his law degree from Hastings College of Law ’
in 1957. After receiving his law degree, and before joining the state bench, Judge Gilliam served
as a depury district artomey for three and a half years and then as a general private practitioner for

another two and a half years.
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Throughout his career, Judge Gilliam has been recognized for his many achievements. In

1965, the San Diego Junior Chamber of Commerce selected Judge Gilliam as the Young Man of
the Year. In 1973 a;nd 1994, he was chosen as the Citizen of the Year, and, in 1975, he received
the Good Guy Award for San Diego. In 1981, the Boys™ Club of San Diego chose Judge Gilliam
as the Golden Man of the Year and. in that same year, the San Diego Trial Lawyers Association
chose him as the Trial Judge of the Year. In 1994, the San Diego County Bar Association

_selected him as.the Lega! Professional of the Year. Judge Gilliam was also-awarded the NAACP
Civil Rights Pioneer AwardAand the Sharp Hospital Foundation's Eagle Spirit Award.
Significantly, the San Diego Black Lawyers Organization chose to honor him by changing the
organization’s name to the Earl B. Gilliam Bar Association, the first living legend to be so
honored by a bar association. Additionally, the Thomas Jefferson School of Law dedicated its
moot courtroom as the Earl B. Gilliam Moot Courtroom.

Judge Gilliam presided over several notev'vorthy cases while on the federal bench. In the
case of National Heaith Laboratories, the government recovered $110 million in criminal fines and
civil penalties in 1992, the largest settlement at the time for health care billing fraud. In 1988, he
presided over a lengthy trial for fraud and income tax evasion of the former Del Mar mayor Nancy
Hoover Hunter arising out of a Ponzi scheme involving J. David Dominelli. He was the trial judge
for the sixteen week Telink criminal tnal in 1987 involving allegations of bribes and kickbacks to
two county officials arising out of a Telink telecommunications contract. As a judicial officer, he
had numerous drug cases, including the notorious Coronado Company marijuana conspiracy case
against a local lawyer. On the civil side, he was the district judge for the leading case of Daubert

v. Merrill Dow Pharmaceuticals_Inc. that established a nationwide standard for the role of tnal
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courts to carefully screen scientific evidence. These are only a few of his legendary cases.

In civic activfties. Judge Gilliam actively promoted the advancement of education for
vouth, young adults and lawyers. He taught several courses at Thomas Jefferson School of Law
and was eventually named the director of trial practice at the law school.

Several years ago. Judge Gilliam had an opportunity to reflect on his life:

“Overall, San Diego’s been a good town for me. [ hope that I rose

to the challenge to make things better for the whole city because

‘there are blacks who can make a contribution. There are tmn:)nnes

who can make contributions. And I’ve always been loyal 10 the women’s cause.

I've enjoyed béing part of it, and T hope that I’ve left some kind of a mark.”

Speaking on behalf of the Court, Chief Judge Marilyn Huff commented, “The Court and
the publié will miss this great jurist, a beloved individual who left an indelible mark on our
community and on the law.” His close friend and colleague the Honorable Napoleon Jones
remarked, “We've truly lost not only a legal giant, but also 2 beautiful person.”

He is survived by his wife Rebecca Prater and his son Derrick James Gilliam. Services will
be held on Tuesday, Febfuary 6, 2001 at 1:00 p.m. at the Bay View Baptist Church, 6154 Benson
Avenue, San Diego. The family requests that in lieu of flowers, donatiﬁns be made to the Earl B.
Gilliam Bar Association Scholarship fund at P O. Box 125022 San Diego, CA 92112-5022 or the
William J. Oakes Boys and Girls Club of San Diego at 2930 Marcy Avenue, San Diego, CA

92113

For further information, contact Chief Judge Marilyn L. Huff (619) 357-6016.

)







Download of this item is not publicly
available due to copyright restrictions.

Contact Special Collections & University
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

THE HONORABLE EARL B. GILLIAM

Appointed August 20, 1980 by President Carter;
inducted August 27, 1980;
took senior status April 12, 1993;
passed away January 28, 2001.






Memorial for the Honorable Earl B. Gilliam

The United States District Court for the Southern District of
California is deeply saddened by the loss of one of its most beloved
jurists, the Honorable Earl B. Gilliam. He passed away on January 28,
2001 after a long illness. For all of us that had the joy of knowing Judge
Gilliam, let me review his accomplishments. He truly touched our hearts
and minds in a special way.

He was a man of many firsts. Judge Gilliam was the first African
American in San Diego to be appointed as a judge to the municipal
court, the superior court, and the district court. He was the first African
American baby to be born in the Baptist hospital on August 17, 1931 in
Clovis, New Mexico. He started the first chapter of the Kappa Alpha Si
fraternity at San Diego State. After law school at Hastings and work in
the district attorney’s office, he was appointed in 1963 by Governor Pat
Brown to the Municipal Court in San Diego. He was then appointed in
1975 to the Superior Court in San Diego by Governor Jerry Brown.
Fortunately for us, he was appointed on August 20, 1980 to the Federal
bench by President Carter. After an illustrious career, he took senior
status on April 12, 1993.

Judge Gilliam had a unique gift — he loved life and easily made friends.
Judge Gilliam spent his early years in Oklahoma City. He moved to San
Diego with his family in the fifth grade and attended Logan and
Stockton Elementary Schools, Memorial Junior High and San Diego
High School. His picture adorns the high school hallway in tribute to
him. He graduated from San Diego State University in 1953 as a
business major and received his law degree from Hastings College of
Law in 1957. After receiving his law degree, and before joining the state
bench, Judge Gilliam served as a deputy district attorney for three and a
half years and then as a general private practitioner for another two and
a half years.

Throughout his career, Judge Gilliam has been recognized for his
many achievements. In 1965, the San Diego Junior Chamber of Com-
merce selected Judge Gilliam as the Young Man of the Year. In 1973 and
1994, he was chosen as the Citizen of the Year, and, in 1975, he received
the Good Guy Award for San Diego. In 1981, the Boys’ Club of San
Diego chose Judge Gilliam as the Golden Man of the Year and, in that
same year, the San Diego Trial Lawyers Association chose him as the
Trial Judge of the Year. In 1994, the San Diego County Bar Association
selected him as the Legal Professional of the Year. Judge Gilliam was also
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awarded the NAACP Civil Rights Pioneer Award and the Sharp
Hospital Foundation’s Eagle Spirit Award. In tribute to his leadership,
the San Diego African American Lawyers Organization chose to honor
him bychanging the organization’s name to the Earl B. Gilliam Bar
Association, and Thomas Jefferson School of Law dedicated its moot
courtroom as the Earl B. Gilliam Moot Courtroom.

Judge Gilliam presided over several noteworthy cases while on the
federal bench. In the case of National Health Laboratories, the govern-
ment recovered $110 million in criminal fines and civil penalties in
1992, the largest settlement at the time for health care billing fraud. In
1988, he presided over a lengthy trial for fraud and income tax evasion
of the former Del Mar mayor Nancy Hoover Hunter arising out of a
Ponzi scheme involving J. David Dominelli. He was the trial judge for
the sixteen week Telink criminal trial in 1987 involving allegations of
bribes and kickbacks to two county officials arising out of a Telink
telecommunications contract. As a judicial officer, he had numerous
drug cases, including the notorious Coronado Company marijuana
conspiracy case against a local lawyer. On the civil side, he was the
district judge for the leading case of Daubert v. Merrill Dow
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. that established a nationwide standard for the
gatekeeping role of courts to screen scientific evidence. These are only
a few of his legendary cases.

We loved working with Judge Gilliam. He showed the court his
respect for all human beings. Walking down the street with Judge
Gilliam was a whole day affair, since he knew everyone in town. He
befriended the homeless, the lawyers, the politicians, the business
leaders, and everyone else he met. He had a special way with people in
the courtroom, and a special bond with his judicial colleagues. I loved
coming to work, passing by his chambers, and hearing a cheery “Good
morning, Your Majesty.” Indeed, I felt like a queen when he was around.

When I needed help, he was always there to give me practical and sound
advice.

Judge Gilliam made lasting friendships. From the days of his work in
his dad’s fish market to his football days at San Diego High School, to his
college and legal education, to his judicial career, he never forgot those
who were important in his life. Family and friends meant so much to
him, but he meant even more to us. Our tribute to him includes our
thanks to his wife Rebecca for all her love and devotion to Judge Gilliam,
a true love story. We were blessed that Judge Gilliam overcame so many






adversities to stay with us for so long. Just last week, for example, he
planned to have lunch at the court with his colleagues on the bench.

In civic activities, Judge Gilliam actively promoted education as a
mentor and helper for youth, young adults and lawyers. He taught
several courses at Thomas Jefferson School of Law and was eventually
named the director of trial practice at the law school. Few knew that he
donated his law professor earnings to the needy at the school. Many
know that he helped several lawyers mature into effective advocates in
the legal community.

Several years ago, Judge Gilliam had an opportunity to reflect on his
life. In his typical understated fashion, he commented, “Overall, San
Diego’s been a good town for me. 1hope that I rose to the challenge to
make things better for the whole city because there are blacks who can
make a contribution. There are minorities who can make contributions.
And I've always been loyal to the women’s cause.

I've enjoyed being part of it, and [ hope that I've left some kind of a
mark.”

The Court and the public will miss this great jurist, a beloved
individual who left an indelible mark on our community and on the law.

Marilyn L. Huff

Chief Judge

United States District Court

for the Southern District of California

January 31, 2001
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Re: obituary
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Subject: Re: obituary
Date: Tue, 30 Jan 2001 09:55:04 -0800
From: Napoleon Jones v
To: Rebecca Prater >
Rdebecca: It really reads well!! I wouldn't make any changes
and I believe it is very tactful. I want to share a few

things with you--the names of the individuals to be honorary
pall bearers are: Robert Kipper, Lynn Perry, Hartwell
Ragsdale, Nap Jones, Jesse Davis, Chuck Rucker, Hans Nansen,
Joe Littlejohn, George Stevens, Del Epps, Don
Wrighton--Derrick was to pick the actual pall-bearers--Earl
suggested Broch?, Derrick Ragsdale, Tony Galyean. I just
talked to Jack Tanner, he's been trying to reach you but sends
his love. Ben Travis (BT) Chief Judge Terry Hatter (central

district) Connie Marshall and Ex-Chief Judge Thelton Henderson
(northern district) will be in attendance. I spoke with
Georges staff and indicated he could present a resolution on
behalf of thed¢eity, if Dick can't or his district~=2min.%or
less. The William J. Oakes Boy's and Girls club will fly
their flag at half-mast and the Fed. Court will be closed for
the afternoon of the 6th. I spoke with Betty and she wanted
somthing--anything to do to help you--I really couldn't think
of anything off hand--do you need a hostess at your house?

I'll see you this evening--do you need me to go to
Ragsdales with you?

Nap

Reply Separator

Subject: oebituary

Author: Rebecca Prater _m> at ~Internet2
Date: T 30/2001:9:22

Please review and revise, and correct the grammar. If you can not open
the 1ile T Will fax 3 Gopy.

1/31/01 7:19 PM











Earl's Celebration Service
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Subject: Earl's Celebration Service '\ i r/Q
Date: Wed, 31 Jan 2001 17:43:22 0800 n ,j
From: Napoleon Jones \Q <
To: rebecca (< ﬁ “ \\\5
£

I just spoke with Jack Tanner—~he will be here, also Aguilar.
The following are the individuals and organizations that are
expected to give resolutions/proclaimations, I am also giving
the tentative order. The City councilpeople must leave by
2:00:

1)City proclamation--Mayor Dick Murphy

2)Districk Resolution--Deputy Mayor George Stevens

3)Earl B. Gilliam Bar Assoc/State Assembly
Resolution--Sherry Thompson

4) Kappa Alpha Psi Resolution--Samuel Knight

5)San Diego County Bar Assoc. Resolution--Aaron Katz

6)National Association For The Advancement Of Colored
People resolution--Petrina Burnham

7)National Bar Association Resolution--Randy Jones

8)San Diego County Board of Supervisors Resolution--Ron
Roberts

9) Lawyers Club of San Diego Resolution--DeAnn Salcido

10)California Association of Black Lawyers
Resolution--LeChala Wilson.

I will work with Rev. Smith to put the City Council
people in so that they can be out by 2:00. I still expect one
or two more organizations requesting to summarize their
resolution to be presented to you. Take care and get some
restiid
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